
SUMMARY 

-1604 

Dembytown Schoolhouse 

The Black community at Dembytown Road, often referred to as simply 
"Dembytown" was started in 1917 when the Federal government purchased the 
Gunpowder Neck for a military installation (Edgewood Arsenal). A number of 
families, the Dembys and Gilberts among them, purchased parcels of land 
from Joshoa Hammond, built houses, and lived in close proximity to one 
another. There are still many descendents of these first families living 
there today. 

The Schoolhouse, built about 1920 represents Harford County's earlier 
efforts to comply with State laws providing for the education of Black 
children. It functioned as a school until 1950, and as such was an important 
part of this early 20th century Black community. Relatively little of the 
Black experience in Harford County has been documented, and the Dembytown 
School as well as other Black schoolhouses throughout the County represent 
an important part of this often overlooked heritage. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Dembytown Schoolhouse is located on the east side of Dembytown Road just 
north of the frame church (HA-1605) on the northeast corner of the intersection of 
Trimble and Dembytown Roads. It is a frame building measuring 32'8" wide by 
39'4" long. Set on concrete peirs, and covered by a gable roof. When recorded on 
January 15, 1981, it had been vacant for sometime, and the roof had begun to collapse. 
While the school is to be dismantled, the man who is going to demolish it said he 
plans to salvage as much lumber as possible. 

The southeast facade of the school contains two entrance doors; a 3' door in 
the west bay was sheltered by a canopy formed by extending the roof rafters, and 
accessible via a concrete porch with 5 steps. Also, a 4' door in the east bay is 
a simple board and batten type reached via wooden steps. The northeast and southwest 
elevations are characterized by the large windows, 6 in the former and 3 in the latter. 
These are 9/9 pane dim wood sashes that measure 3'4" X7'6". Also on the southwest 
facade in the south bay are two narrower windows that lit a teachers office on the 
interior. There is a single 6/6 window in the center by of the southeast wall, and 
a single 6/6 on the opposite (northwest) wall. 

The school originally had 511 German siding which is now covered by asphalt shingles. 
The roof ridge is parallel to the northwest-southeast walls and is covered with 
asphalt shingles. The roof overhangs all 4 walls by about 1'2". In the gable ends, 
there are plain rake boards, and at the eaves, the projecting rafters are finished 
with a plumb cut, with the lower corner notched out. A brick chimney with a corbeli-~ 
cap rises through the roof at the west bay of the southwest wall. 

The interior is divided as follows. In southern half, there is a wainscoted 
room 9' X 14'6" in the southeast corner that was probably a teachers office, accesible 
from the more formal entrance. The wainscot is of vertical 4" boards grooved to re­
semble 2' planks, up to a height of 7'. One partition of this room was open from 
the floor to 7', possibly for a glass panel. In the center of the southern half is 
an open space 14' X 16', lighted by the three windows and with a small paneled storage 
closet. In the southwest corner is a 5'X7'room finished with l"XlO" rough sawn boards 
on the walls and ceiling •. This may have been for coal storage, since next to this 
room is another small room with access to the brick chimney (taps were visible in two 
places.) 

The north half of the school is one large space 23' X 31', (later divided by 
numerous partitions to make this building a two apartment dwelling. 

All interior doors have 5 vertical panels; and like the windows they are trimmed 
with plain l"X6" boards. The floor is of 2-1/2" tongue and groove planking with a 
l"X6" baseboard with an ogee cap the ceilings and walls are of plaster over circular 
sawn lath. Ceiling height is 12', and 1'6" down from the ceiling is an ogee moulding 
that runs along the perimeter of all 4 walls and original partitions. In places where 
water has caused the ceiling to collapse, the roof framing system was observed. Sawn 
l"X8" boards were used to create a single truss system attached to the sawn rafters. 
Roof sheathing are l"Xl2" boards. 

(See Description Continuation Sheet #1) 
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The Black community at Dembytown Road, often referred to as simply "Dembytown" 
was started in 1917 when the Federal government purchased the Gunpowder Neck for a 
military installation (Edgewood Arsenal). A number of families, the Dembys and Gilberts 
among them, purchased parcels of land from Joshoa Hammond, built houses, and lived in 
close proximity to one another. There are still many descendents of these first families 
living there today. 

The Schoolhouse, built about 1920 represents Harford County~ earlier efforts to 
comply with State laws providing for the education of Black children. It functioned 
as a school until 1950, and as such was an important part of this early 20th century 
Black community. Relatively little of the Black experience in Harford County has been 
...1..<-icumented, and the Dembytown School as well as other Black schoolhouses throughout the 

Jnty represent an important part of this often overlooked heritage. 
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(Description Continuation Sheet ffl) 

HA-1604 
Dembytown Schoolhouse 

In the course of conversations with Jerry and Rhoda Gilbert, who are lifelong 
residents of Dembytown, it was revealed that their son Russell Gilbert attended school 
here and was one of the last pupils. The Dembytown School closed in 1951 when a 
consolidated school for blacks was opened in Hickory. They reported the school has 
been vacant for at least eight years. A title search reveals the land was purchased 
by the Harford County Board of Education in 1919 for the purpose of erecting a school 
for colored children. The school, that was constructed here served the purpose until 
1951, when it was sold and ultimately converted to a two family dwelling unit. Plans 
afoot in early 1981 call for its demolition by the owner. 



GRG 422/179 

GRG 375/507 

GRG 353/378 

JAR 171/9 

TITLE SEARCH 

DEMBYTOWN SCHOOLHOUSE 

HA-1604 

Oct. 13, 1954 

June 28, 1952 

February 12, 1951 

December 2, 1919 

Grantor: 
Grantee: 
Acreage: 
Sum: 

Grantor: 

Arthur and Claire Kreiss 
Samuel and Lydia Lee 
714/1000 acres 
$1,637.73 

Adele Bailey Rees and husband 
Richard 

Grantee: Arthur and Claire Kreiss 
Acreage: "All of that lot or parcel of 

land formerly a Methodist Church (?) 
and later a County Public School 
property" 
.714 acre 

Grantor: Board of Education of Harford County, 
Maryland 

Grantee: Hugh B. Bailey and M. Adele Rees 
purchases ''Magnolia colored school 
property 

Acreage: . 714 acre 
These grantees also purchased the "Asbury School 
property" Churchville, Norrisville School 
property" and the "Carea School Property" 

Grantors: The Gunpowder Station of the Methodist 
Episcopal Church of Magnolia of 
Harford County, Inc. and Joseph 
and Dora Leight 

Grantee: Board of Education of Harford 
County 

Resolution passed December 1, 1918 by Gunpowder Station of Methodist Church to 
sell 1 acre of land to Board of Education to be used as site for school for colored 
children Sum $1.00 - 0.714 acre. 

being part of the land conveyed by Florence Jimerson et al, Trustee of the John 
Wesley Methodist Episcopal Church to the Gunpowder Station of the Methodist Episcopal 
Church of Magnolia, and part of JAR 160/285. 
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HA-1604 

Magnolia Colored Schoolhouse 
Dembytown, Md. 
Phillip R. Lord 1/81 
Southwest Corner 





HA-1604 

Magnolia Colored Schoolhouse 
Dembytown, Md . 
Phillip R. Lord 1/81 
South Elevation 


